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MEMO 
HAROLD P. GEWERTER, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 499 
1212 S. Casino Center Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 
Tel: (702) 382-1714 
Fax: (702) 382-1759 
Email: harold@gewerterlaw.com 
Attorneys for Defendants, Ronald J. Robinson,  
Vern Rodriguez, and Alisa Davis 
 
 
 
 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
*** 

 
Steven A. Hotchkiss, 
  
          PLAINTIFF,  
 
vs. 
 
RONALD J. ROBINSON, VERN 
RODRIGUEZ, VIRTUAL 
COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION, 
WINTECH, LLC, RETIRE HAPPY, 
LLC,JOSH STOLL, FRANK YODER, 
ALISA DAVIS, and DOES 1-10 and 
ROES 1-10, inclusive,  
 
          Defendants.  
___________________________________ 
 
AND ALL CONSOLIDATED ACTIONS 

CASE NO.: A-17-762264-C 
DEPT NO.:  IX 
 
 
 
 
CONSOLIDATED WITH 
 
Case No. A-17-763003-C 
 

DEFENDANTS’ POST-TRIAL 
MEMORANDUM 

 

  
 
 
 COME NOW, Defendants, RONALD J. ROBINSON and VERN RODRIGUEZ, by and 

through their attorney of record, HAROLD P. GEWERTER, ESQ., of HAROLD P. 

GEWERTER, ESQ., LTD., and hereby submit their Post-Trial Memorandum. 

Case Number: A-17-762264-C

Electronically Filed
3/23/2020 3:56 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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I. Introduction 
 

 The Bench Trial in the instant matter was held on February 24, 2020 through February 

25, 2020.  The claims against Defendants were as follows: 

1. Fraud, misrepresentations and omissions 

2. Violation of Nevada securities licensing and registration laws NRS 90.310, 90.460 and 

90.660 

3. Violation of Nevada Securities laws (misrepresentations and omissions) 90.570 and 

90.660 

4. Breach of written contract 

II. Issues Following Trial 

Validity of Loan Guarantee 

Following the testimony and evidence presented at trial, the Court asked for cursory briefs 

addressing the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law from Donell v. Perpetual Investment 

Inc., Case No. 2:04:cv-1172-KJD-LRL.  The Federal Court’s holding in that case has no 

precedential value to the instant case and it has no persuasive value as the facts therein are 

materially dissimilar to those in the Case before this Court.   

 As such, Marion Properties. Ltd. v. Goff, 108 Nev. 946, 840 P.2d 1230 (1992) is still the 

operative law in this matter.  In Marion Properties, the plaintiff alleged that Americana 

Construction ("Americana") had entered into an agreement with Marion Properties, Ltd. 

("Marion") to build condominiums on Marion's property, that Americana had breached its 

contract with Marion, that Americana's officers, directors, shareholders or owners had signed 

personal guaranties agreeing to indemnify Americana's creditors and that such individuals were 

liable on the guaranties. The defendants moved to dismiss the Complaint on the ground that the 
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plaintiff's claim was barred due to a stipulated judgment between Americana and Marion in 

another case whereby each dismissed with prejudice its claims against the other relating to the 

construction agreement. 

The District Court granted the motion to dismiss. On appeal, the Supreme Court affirmed. 

It stated: 

It is well-settled that guarantors and sureties are exonerated if the creditor alters 
the obligation of the principal without the consent of the guarantor or surety. 
Williams v. Crusader Disc. Corp., 75 Nev. 67, 70-71, 334 P.2d 843, 846 (1959); 
Howard v. Associated Grocers, 123 Ariz. 593, 595, 601 P.2d 593, 595 (1979) 
(discharge of the debtor's obligation to the creditor without consent of the 
guarantor discharges the obligation of the guarantor). 
 
In this case, the debt has been completely extinguished as between Marion and 
Americana. The discharge of Americana's obligation to Marion, without the 
consent of respondents, discharged the obligation of respondents as guarantors 
and as sureties. We therefore conclude that the district court correctly dismissed 
Marion's complaint, and we affirm the order of the district court. Id. at 108 Nev. 
948-949, 840 P.2d 1231-1232 (footnote omitted). 
 

 The Court’s holdings in Marion Properties can be traced back to the decades-old decision 

in Williams v. Crusader Discount Corp., 75 Nev. 67, 334 P. 2d 843 (1959).  In Williams, the 

Court dealt with the issue of a creditor who alters the obligation of a guarantor or surety.  In 

finding that such act exonerates the responsibilities of guarantors/sureties, the Williams Court 

stated: 

It is settled law that the novation of a contract, the performance of which is 
guaranteed by sureties who do not consent to the novation absolves them of their 
liability, which disappears with the debt 846*846 to which it was collateral. 66 
C.J.S., Novation, § 22, 39 Am.Jur., Novation, § 27. 
 

“Guarantors and sureties are exonerated if the creditor, by any act done 
without their consent, alters the obligation of the principal in any respect, 
or impairs or suspends the remedy for its enforcement. Where after breach 
of contract, the performance of which is guaranteed, the creditor and 
principal debtor enter into a new contract by which the amount of damages 
then due is made payable on a future day, and upon terms different from 
those imposed by the original agreement, such new contract presumptively 
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merges the old. In such a case the new obligation * * * becomes the 
exclusive medium by which the rights of the parties in respect to the 
payment of damages are to be ascertained. Such a contract is not collateral 
to the original, but, in respect to the subject to which it appertains, it 
merges and supersedes the other.”  Weed S.M. Co. v. Winchell, 107 Ind. 
260, 7 N.E. 881, 884. 
“[A] surety is discharged by the novation of the debt; for he can no longer 
be bound for the first debt for which he was a surety, since it no longer 
subsists, having been extinguished by the novation; neither can he be 
bound for the new debt, into which the first has been converted, since this 
new debt was not the debt to which he acceded.”  Frost v. Harbert, 20 
Idaho 336, 118 P. 1095, 1096, 38 L.R.A.,N.S., 875. 
 

         Not only is the Court’s holdings in Marion Properties rooted in established law, said 

holdings have since been subsequently affirmed by the Court.  In Southwest Securities v. 

AMFAC, Inc., 110 Nev. 1036, 879 P.2d 755 (1994), the Court upheld the holding of Marion 

Properties.  In ruling in favor of the Defendant, the Court in Southwest Securities held: 

“It is well-settled that guarantors and sureties are exonerated if the creditor alters 
the obligation of the principal without the consent of the guarantor or surety.”  
Marion Properties, Ltd. v. Goff, 108 Nev. 946, 948, 840 P.2d 1230, 1231 (1992).  
Thus, if [Plaintiff], as lessor-creditor, altered the obligation of Airport, the lessee-
principal, without the consent of [Defendant], the guarantor, then [Defendant’s] 
obligation as guarantor was exonerated.  
 

 A review of published opinions by the undersigned reveals no other commentary on the 

clear holding of William, Marion Properties, and Southwest Securities.  As such, this Court can 

avail itself in deciding the instant matter to the operative and current Nevada law holding that 

guarantors and sureties are exonerated if the creditor alters the obligation of the principal without 

the consent of the guarantor or surety.       

Officers and Directors are not liable for the acts of a Corporation 

 The second issue which Defendants wish to address in this Post-Trial Brief which will 

aid the Court in its decision is the axiomatic rule that officers and directors cannot be liable for 

the acts of a corporation except in very limited circumstances, none of which are present in this 
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case.  NRS 78.747, entitled “Liability of another person for debt or liability of corporation,” 

provides in toto: 

  1.  Except as otherwise specifically provided by statute or agreement, no 
person other than a corporation is individually liable for a debt or liability of the 
corporation unless the person acts as the alter ego of the corporation. 
       2.  A person acts as the alter ego of a corporation only if: 
      (a) The corporation is influenced and governed by the person; 
      (b) There is such unity of interest and ownership that the corporation and the 
person are inseparable from each other; and 
      (c) Adherence to the notion of the corporation being an entity separate from 
the person would sanction fraud or promote a manifest injustice. 
      3.  The question of whether a person acts as the alter ego of a corporation 
must be determined by the court as a matter of law. 
 

 In the instant matter, the fact that Plaintiffs refer to Defendant Vern Rodriguez as a 

“control person” is legally of zero consequence.  A person must be involved in the sale or 

purchase of a security as a threshold issue before even being considered as a control person for 

liability purposes.  Vern Rodriguez was not so involved.  See NRS 90.660, which provides: 

  1.  A person who offers or sells a security in violation of any of the following 
provisions: 
      (a) Subsection 1 of NRS 90.310; 
      (b) NRS 90.460; 
      (c) Subsection 10 of NRS 90.500; 
      (d) Subsection 2 of NRS 90.570; 
      (e) Subsection 2 of NRS 90.610; or 
      (f) A condition imposed in subsection 8 or 9 of NRS 90.500, 
is liable to the person purchasing the security. Upon tender of the security, the 
purchaser may recover the consideration paid for the security and interest at the 
legal rate of this State from the date of payment, costs and reasonable attorney’s 
fees, less the amount of income received on the security. A purchaser who no 
longer owns the security may recover damages. Damages are the amount that 
would be recoverable upon a tender less the value of the security when the 
purchaser disposed of it, plus interest at the legal rate of this State from the date 
of disposition of the security, costs and reasonable attorney’s fees determined by 
the court. Tender requires only notice of willingness to exchange the security for 
the amount specified. 
      2.  A person who offers or sells a security in violation of subsection 2 of NRS 
90.570 is not liable under subsection 1 of this section if: 
      (a) The purchaser knew that a statement of a material fact was untrue or that 
there was an omission of a statement of a material fact; or 
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      (b) The seller did not know and in the exercise of reasonable care could not 
have known of the untrue statement or misleading omission. 
      3.  A person who willfully participates in any act or transaction in violation 
of NRS 90.580 is liable to a person who purchases or sells a security, other than 
a security traded on a national securities exchange or quoted on a national 
automated quotation system administered by a self-regulatory organization, at a 
price that was affected by the act or transaction for the damages sustained as a 
result of the act or transaction. Damages are the difference between the price at 
which the securities were purchased or sold and the market value the securities 
would have had at the time of the person’s purchases or sale in the absence of the 
act or transaction, plus interest at the legal rate of this State from the date of the 
act or transaction and reasonable attorney’s fees. 
      4.  A person who directly or indirectly controls another person who is liable 
under subsection 1 or 3, a partner, officer or director of the person liable, a person 
occupying a similar status or performing similar functions, any agent of the person 
liable, an employee of the person liable if the employee materially aids in the act, 
omission or transaction constituting the violation, and a broker-dealer or sales 
representative who materially aids in the act, omission or transaction constituting 
the violation, are also liable jointly and severally with and to the same extent as 
the other person, but it is a defense that the person did not know, and in the 
exercise of reasonable care could not have known, of the existence of the facts by 
which the liability is alleged to exist. With respect to a person who directly or 
indirectly, controls another person who is liable under subsection 3, it is also a 
defense that the controlling person acted in good faith and did not, directly or 
indirectly, induce the act, omission or transaction constituting the violation. 
Contribution among the several persons liable is the same as in cases arising out 
of breach of contract.     
 

  Furthermore, the Federal Courts have previously held that the allegation that a defendant 

was a director is not sufficient to make him or her a “controlling person.”  For example, see 

Jacdobs v. Coopers Lybrand, LLP, 1999 WL 101772 (S.D.N.Y. March 1, 1999).   

/ / /  

/ / / 

/ / /  

/ / /  

/ / / 

/ / / 
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III. Conclusion 

 Based upon the foregoing, as well as the legal assertions contained in Defendants’ Pre-

Trial Brief, Defendants respectfully request that this Court assess no liability against Vern 

Rodriguez as to any allegations against him, and no liability should be imposed against Ronald 

Robinson based upon the guarantee which was at issue at trial.   

 Dated this 23rd day of March, 2020. 

     Respectfully submitted, 

  HAROLD P. GEWERTER, ESQ., LTD. 

/s/: Harold P. Gewerter   
HAROLD P. GEWERTER, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 499 
1212 S. Casino Center Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101 

     Tel: (702) 382-1714 
     Email: harold@gewerterlaw.com 
     Attorneys for Defendants 
      
 
  

mailto:danny@mushlaw.com
mailto:danny@mushlaw.com
mailto:danny@mushlaw.com
mailto:danny@mushlaw.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Certification is hereby made that a true and correct copy of the foregoing POST-TRIAL 

MEMORANDUM was served this 23rd day of March, 2020, by electronic service via the court’s 

electronic filing and electronic service and/or via U.S. Mail to the counsel set forth on the service 

list, and listed below, pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, NEFCR 9 (a), and EDCR Rule 

7.26. 
  

David Liebrader, Esq. 
 The Law Offices of David Liebrader, APC 
 601 S. Rancho Dr., Ste. D-29 
 Las Vegas, NV 89106 
  
  

 
    /s/Sonja  Howard        
    An Employee of Harold P. Gewerter, Esq., Ltd.   
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DECISION 

This case came before the Court for Decision following a two-day bench trial in 

February of 2020. Having considered the evidence presented at trial, together with the 

arguments presented in the parties’ closing briefs, the Court hereby enters the following 

Decision. 

I. Virtual Communications Corporation (“VCC”) Note was a Security as 
defined by the Nevada Securities Act (see NRS §90.295) 

In Nevada, NRS 90.295 defines what qualifies as a “security,” which includes, 

amongst other things, “a note.” See NRS 90.295. This does not mean that all notes qualify as 

securities. Rather, the Supreme Court of Nevada established a test for determining whether or 

not a note qualifies as a security in State v. Friend, 118 Nev. 115, 120-121 (2002). Under the Friend 

analysis, the court begins with the presumption that every note is a security, which is 

rebuttable under one of two steps: 

(1) The note subject to review is compared to a series of notes that are not  
securities; and  

(2) The note subject to review is examined according to four factors: (1) 
motivation; (2) plan of distribution; (3) expectations, and (4) need for 
securities law. 

 

The VCC notes do not qualify as: (1) consumer financing; (2) a mortgage on a home; (3) 

something suggesting it is a “character” loan to a bank customer; (4) an open-account debt 

incurred in the ordinary course of business; (5) a loan by commercial banks for current 

operations; (6) short-term notes secured by a lien on a small business or some of its assets; or 

(7) short-term notes secured by an assignment of accounts receivable. Friend, 118 Nev. at 121. As 

a result, the Court moves to the second part of the test to determine if, upon review, the notes 

meet the four factors demonstrating they qualify as a security.  

An examination of the promissory notes issued by VCC actually meets all four factors.  
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Much like any other investment opportunity, the evidence at trial revealed that the motivation 

behind the issuance of the Notes was to raise funds to support VCC1 and the related “Alice” 

technology, and that investment in VCC would result in a favorable monetary return.2 

Testimony from Mr. Robinson and Mr. Rodriguez confirmed the Notes were issued to raise 

money. Promises of financial gain were made to the purchasers of the Notes; those promises 

would lead a reasonable person to want to purchase the Notes as an investment. The 

Defendants’ sale of the Notes resulted in them raising over 4 million dollars.  

Further, the PowerPoint presentations introduced as exhibits at trial set forth clear plan 

of distribution and the expectations (i.e. returns) that would result from the distribution of the 

Notes.3 Testimony from the Defendants, Ms. Davis and Mr. Frank Yoder, confirmed that the 

Defendants were consulted on the content of the PowerPoints setting forth the plan of 

distribution, which included language about the personal guarantee by Mr. Robinson and a 

referral of the notes as “securities.”  

Last but not least, the end-result of the Notes demonstrates that the purchasers 

reasonably viewed the Notes as investments. They were presented to investors and potential 

investors as “securities,”4 which is prima facie proof that the Notes were investments. The 

purpose of selling the Notes was also to raise money, which further demonstrates that they 

were intended to be investments.  

                                                                 
1 See Exhibit 4 at Bates No. 00066, PowerPoint presentation for potential investors indicating the “target 

goal was $120 billon dollars in the global market.”; see also Exhibit 6 at Bates No. 0096 (same).  
2 See id. at Bates No. 0074 stating the terms of the securities included a “[T]erm of 18 months, with a 6 

month extension option. Notes pay 9% annually with interest paid monthly.” (Emphasis added); see also Exhibit 6 
at 00150 (same). 

3 See Exhibit 4 at Bates No. 0070, setting for the “Revenue Forecast,” and Bates No. 0074, setting forth the 
“Growth Strategy.”; see also Exhibit 6 at Bates No. 00100 and 00104 (same). 
 4 See Exhibit 5 at Bates No. 74; Exhibit 6 at Bates No. 00150. In fact, the PowerPoints even included 
information about the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. See Exhibit 4 at Bates No. 0064; Exhibit No. 6 at Bates No. 
0094. 
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Testimony from Plaintiff Mr. Hotchkiss is more evidence that that the VCC Notes meet 

the four factors. Mr. Hotchkiss testified that he used 1/3 of his personal savings to purchase the 

notes as part of his overall retirement plan. Specifically he purchased the Notes because of (1) 

the personal guarantee, and (2) the expectation of a 9% return. Moreover, Mr. Hotchkiss 

testified that when he repeatedly attempted to contact Vernon Rodriguez to figure out where 

his returns were, Rodriguez asked him “for patience.” Finally, he testified that he never received 

any of his funds back. The Court notes that there was no evidence introduced at trial that any 

of the investors received their funds back. 

II. The VCC Note Was Not registered as a Security; Defendant Failed to 
Provide Any Evidence that it was Exempt from the Registration 
Requirements. 
 

 There was no evidence introduced at trial to demonstrate that the VCC Note was 

exempt from registration as a security. Therefore, the Notes are not exempted. 

III. Ronald Robinson and Vernon Rodriguez were control persons as defined in 
NAC 90.035. 

 Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) section 90.035 defines a “control person” as an 

individual who (1) owns or controls 10 percent or more of the voting stock of a corporation; (2) 

is an officer or director of a corporation; or (3) is in a position to influence the decision-making 

processes of a corporation. “In general, the determination of who is a controlling person ... is an 

intensely factual question.” Arthur Children's Trust v. Keim, 994 F.2d 1390, 1396 (9th Cir.1993) 

(discussing a “control person” under Federal Securities law). To establish “controlling person” 

liability, the plaintiff must show that a primary violation was committed and that the 

defendant “directly or indirectly” controlled the violator. See Hollinger v. Titan Capital Corp., 914 

F.2d 1564, 1575 (9th Cir. 1990), cert. denied, 499 U.S. 976, 111 S.Ct. 1621, 113 L.Ed.2d 719 (1991).  
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 As established above, Plaintiffs have established that VCC was issuing un-exempted, 

unregistered securities. Plaintiffs also alleged that Ronald Robinson and Vernon Rodriguez are 

control persons. The evidence at trial proves this allegation by more than a preponderance of 

the evidence. Robinson and Rodriguez were officers in the corporation. Robinson was a 

President, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chairman of the Board, and a signer on the financial 

accounts. Rodriguez spoke and gave advice to potential investors. According to Frank Yoder’s 

testimony, Rodriguez was also fully involved in the finances of the corporation. The Court  

believes Yoder’s testimony, in part because Rodriguez was listed as the Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) in the various PowerPoints presented to potential investors.5   

 If the plaintiff establishes that a defendant is a “controlling person,” then the defendant 

bears the burden of proving that he “acted in good faith and did not directly or indirectly 

induce the act or acts constituting the violation or cause of action.” Paracor Fin., Inc. v. Gen. Elec. 

Capital Corp., 96 F.3d 1151, 1161 (9th Cir. 1996) (citing 15 U.S.C. § 78t(a)); see also Hollinger, 914 

F.2d at 1575. While the testimony of Robinson and Rodriguez suggests that they believed they 

were acting in good faith, based in part on an alleged lack of knowledge of Nevada security 

laws, they failed to present any evidence that they were not directly or indirectly involved in 

the acts regarding the violation of Nevada security regulations. Rather, the evidence 

demonstrates that they were directly and intimately involved in creating the material to sell the 

Notes; Robinson then served as the personal guarantor of the Notes and Rodriguez was the 

proverbial “closer” who spoke to investors when necessary. 

. . . 

. . . 

                                                                 
 5 The PowerPoints also belie Rodriguez’s testimony that he did not become CFO until 2014.   
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IV. Ronald Robinson is Liable as a Guarantor 

 There is no disagreement that Robinson personally guaranteed the Notes/Securities at 

issue in this case.6 In fact, Robinson admitted to guaranteeing the Notes during trial, albeit 

noting he only intended to personally guarantee some of them.7 Qualified or not, his guarantee 

was “absolute” and “unconditional.”8 With his admission, the Court must then determine if he 

is still liable pursuant to personal guarantee after VCC’s bankruptcy proceedings. The Court 

finds that VCC’s bankruptcy did not extinguish Robinson’s personal guarantee of the 

promissory notes. The Court adopts the reasoning in the Donnell and Nelson cases in reaching 

this decision. Specifically, the Court agrees with Plaintiff’s argument that VCC’s bankruptcy 

was a tactical, self-interested decision by Robinson to try and eliminate his responsibilities as 

the personal guarantor. His decision constitutes as consent to the modification, and further did 

not increase his liability risk. Consequently, he is still liable as a personal guarantor. See generally 

Marc Nelson Oil Products v. Grim Logging Co., 110 P.3d 120, 122-125.  

V. Conclusion 

Within 30 days of this decision, the parties shall meet and confer and submit a proposed 

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law consistent with this Decision.  Further, Plaintiff must 

submit a brief regarding damages, and the evidence that supports the requested damages 

within 45 days. Defendant may file an opposition 14 days after the filing of Plaintiff’s brief. 

Plaintiff may file a reply within 7 days of any filed opposition. 

. . . 

. . . 

                                                                 
6 See Exhibit 5 at Bates No. 0088. 

 7 During trial, Robinson testified that Julie Minushkin issued some of the Notes with his personal 
guarantee without his permission. No other evidence was introduced to support his position. 

8 See Exhibit 5 at Bates No. 0088. 
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After the Court receives and reviews the proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of 

Law, and full briefing on the issue of damages, the Court will issue the Findings of Fact and 

Conclusion of Law. Thereafter a judgment shall issue in favor of the Plaintiffs and against 

Defendants.    

 DATED this ________ day of April, 2020. 

 
       ____________________________________________ 

       CRISTINA D. SILVA 
       DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
 

  

27th
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on the date filed, a copy of the foregoing DECISION was electronically 

served, pursuant to N.E.F.C.R. Rule 9, to all registered parties in the Eighth Judicial District Court 

Electronic Filing Program (EFP) and/or emailed to any party or proper person not registered with the 

District Court EFP system. 

                                                                               

                                        ______________ 
      Judicial Executive Assistant 

           Jaye L. Beltran
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DISTRICT COURT
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IN THE MATTER BETWEEN

Steven A.Hotchkiss,

Casc No.A-17-762264-C

Oept..r( 1
PLAINTIFF,

Ronald J. Robinson, Vernon Rodriguez, Frank

Yoder, Alisa Davis and DOES l-10 and ROES l-
10, inclusively

CONSOLIDATED WITH

Case No.A-17¨ 763003-C

DEFENDANTS
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ORDER ON DEFENDANTS
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Suntheimer, Stephens Ghesquiere, Jackie Stone,
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Ronald J. Robinson, Vernon Rodriguez, Virnral
Communications Corporation, Frank Yoder, Alisa
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DEFENDANTS

FINDINGS OF FACT,CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER

This matter was sublnitted for a bench trial before the Hono Cristina Silva on
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Ronald Robinson and Vern Rodriguez. In addition, the court heard testimony from

Alisa Davis and FrankYoder, named Defendants who were dismissed at the

conclusion of Plaintiffs' case in chief. Prior to trial there was briefing on the issues of

whether the notes were securities and whether Plaintiffs had standing to bring their

claim. Furthermore, after trial the court received post trial briefs from the parties.

FINDINGS OF FACT: CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

After considering the testimony of the parties and witnesses, the exhibits

offered and received into evidence, the parties' briefs, the arguments of counsel, and

the rulings issued by this court on previously submitted matters, the Court makes the

following findings:

That Plaintiffs invested in Virtual Communications Corporation's go/o

Promissory Notes which were personally guaranteed by Ronald Robinson.

That VCC stopped making payments in February,zoLS and the company and

Ronald Robinson were notified of the default, with a demand to bring all amounts

due current, and to repay the principal.

That VCC filed for Chapter rr bankruptcy protection, and all proceedings

against VCC were stayed. The case proceeded against the other, nonbankrupt

defendants.

As to the legal issues, the Court makes the following findings:

1. VCC sold unregistered nonexempt securities.

Applyrng the test set forth in State v. Friend, tt8 Nev. rr5 (zooz) the Court finds that

the promissory Notes offered by VCC and sold to the Plaintiffs meet the definition of

a security under NRS $9o.29S. Further, none of the Defendants either claimed or

2
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attempted to prove that any exemption froln registration applied to the offering or

any ofthe individual transactionso As a result,the court flnds that VCC sold

unregistered nonexempt securities to the Plaintiffin violation ofNRS§ 9o.46o。

2.   Ronald Robinson and Vernon Rodriguez are liable as Control Persons,

Nevada Administrat市 e Code(NAC)sectiOn 9o.o35 defines a“ control person"as

an individual who(1)ownS Or controls lo percent or rnore ofthe voting stock of a

corporation;(2)iS an OffiCer or director of a corporation;or(3)iS in a position to

influence the decision-lnaking processes of a corporation.

The evldence attrial proved by lnore than a preponderance ofthe evldence

that Mr.Robinson and Mro Rodriguez were VCC's officers,and thatthey were in a

position to,and did in fact,in■ uence the unregistered Pronlissory Note offering。

NIIro Robinson was VCC's President,Chief Executive Officer(CEO)and the

Chairrnan ofthe Boardo Mro Rodriguez wasthe CFO,and was designated as the point

of contact for investors who had questions about the Pronlissory Note offering.Both

men were fully involved in the flnances ofthe company,and both were aware ofthe

Power Point presentations that were prepared by VCC to show to prospective

investors。

Based upon this e、ndence,Plaintiffs lnet their burden of establishing that Mr,

Robinson and Mro Rodriguez were statutory control persons、 ～
nthin the deflnition of

NAC 9o.o35。

3・ Mr.Robinson is liable as a guarantor

The e、■dence introduced at trial proved by a preponderance ofthe evldence

that the Note bears the signature of Defendant Ronald Robinson,as guarantor,Mr。

3
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Robinson claiIFled that his signature was used uthout his perΠlission,and that he did

notintend to guarantee repayment.

The Court found Defendant Robinson's position unpersuasiveo No less than six

separate documents introduced at trial e、 電denced Mro Robinson's intent to guarantee

the Note.

The Court also flnds thatthe VCC Bankruptcy did not extinguish Mr。

Robinson's personal guarantee.The Court asked for and received post trial briefs on

this issue,and relylng on the reasoning set forth in Donnell vo PerDetual lnvestlnents.

InC。 (USDC Nevada,case 2:04-CV-01172,Decision issued lo/11/o6)and Marc Nelson

,110P・ 3d120(Or.App.2005)findS that the VCC

bankruptcy did not extinguish NIr.Robinson's liability as guarantor of the Notes.

As Chairrnan ofthe Board,Robinson directed VCC to file for Chapter ll

bankruptcy with full knowledge that such a filing would preserve his equity position

in the company,while silnultaneously hoping the fihng would extinguish his$4

million persond liability under the Noteso As a result,the Court flnds such conduct

serves as a defacto consent to the rnodiflcation,which also did notincrease Mr.

Robinson's risk under the Note terlns.

As a result ofthe sale of unregistered securities under NRS§ 9o.46o,the Court

flnds control persons Robinson and Rodriguez hable for the sale of unregistered

securities,and flnds that Plaintiffs are entitled to damages under NRS§ 9o.66o。

The Court further finds that VCC was in breach of contract,and that as

guarantor Ronald Robinson is liable to the Plaintiffs for damages under the Note

terlns,

4
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Upon the submission of briefs detailing their statutory and contract damages

the Court will issue judgment in favor of Plaintiffs.

Dated tfris 4 th day of May, 2o2o

Submitted by: /s/ David Liebrader
David Liebrader, Esq.
AttorneY for Plaintiff

ITIS SO ORDERED:

Cristina
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